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203.  

136. During all relevant times, Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class are covered employees 

entitled to the above-described FLSA’s protections.  See 29 U.S.C. § 203(e). 

137. Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class are not exempt from the requirements of the FLSA.  

Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class are entitled to be paid overtime compensation for all hours worked 

over forty (40) in a workweek pursuant, not to fall below 1 ½ times the minimum wage.  See 29 

U.S.C. §§ 206(a)(1), 207(a)(1). 

138. Vox’s compensation scheme applicable to Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class failed to 

comply with 29 U.S.C. §§ 206(a)(1), 207(a)(1). 

139. Vox knowingly failed to compensate Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class at a rate of 

one and one-half (1 ½) times their regular hourly wage for hours worked in excess of forty (40) 

hours per week, not to fall below 1 ½ times the minimum wage, in violation of 29 U.S.C. §§ 

206(a)(1), 207(a)(1). 

140. Vox also failed to make, keep, and preserve records with respect to Plaintiffs and 

the FLSA Class sufficient to determine their wages, hours, and other conditions of employment 

in violation of the FLSA.  29 U.S.C. § 211(c); 29 C.F.R. §§ 516.5(a), 516.6(a)(1), 516.2(c). 

141. In violating the FLSA, Vox acted willfully and with reckless disregard of clearly 

applicable FLSA provisions. 

142. Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), employers such as Vox, who intentionally fail to 

pay an employee wages in conformance with the FLSA shall be liable to the employee for 

unpaid wages, liquidated damages, court costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in recovering the 

unpaid wages. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs seek the following relief on behalf of themselves and all others

similarly situated:

a. An order permitting this litigation to proceed as an FLSA collective action
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);

b. Prompt notice, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), of this litigation to all potential
FLSA Class members;

c. Back pay damages (including unpaid minimum wages and overtime
compensation) and prejudgment interest to the fullest extent permitted under the
law;

d. Liquidated damages to the fullest extent permitted under the law;

e. Litigation costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the fullest extent permitted under
the law; and

f. Such other and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury for all issues of fact.

Dated: October 23, 2017 Respectfully Submitted,

ames E. Goodley (Bar. No. P 69)
Judith Sznyter (Bar No. 982325)
Stephen J. Holroyd*
Marc. L. Gelman*
JENNINGS SIGMOND, P.C.
1835 Market Street, Suite 2800
Philadelphia, PA 19103
Telephone: (215) 351-0613/0641/0670/0623
jgoodley@jslex.com
j sznyter@j slex.com
sholroyd@jslex.com
mgelman@jslex.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and the FLSA Class
* Admitted Pro Hac Vice
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, James E. Goodley, Esquire state under penalty of perjury that I caused a copy of the

foregoing First Amended Collective Action Complaint to be served via the CM/ECF electronic

noticing system on the date and to the addresses below:

Jason C. Schwartz
GIBSON, DUNK & CRUTCHER LLP

1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036-5303
j schwartz~,gibsondunn. com

Theodore J. Boutrous Jr.
GIBBON, DUNN & CRUTCHER LLP

3 3 3 South Grand Avenue
Los Angeles, CA 90071-3197
tboutrous~a, ~ibsondunn. com

Attorneys for Defendant

/s/James E. Goodley
JAMES E. GOODLEY, ESQUIRE

Date: October 23, 2017

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN ELECTRONICALLY FILED AND IS AVAILABLE
FOR VIEWING AND DOWNLOADING FROM THE ECF SYSTEM
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